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Independent Auditor's Report

To the Members of CMR Nikkei India Private Limited

Report on Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of CMR Nikkei India Private
Limited ("the Company")which comprises the Balance Sheet as at Match 31, 2021, the
Statement of Profit and Loss (including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income), the
cash flows statement and the statement of changes in equity for the year ended on that date, and
notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as " the Ind AS Financial Statements").

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements read together with other notes thereon give the
information required by the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") in the manner so required and
give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standatds prescribed under
section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standatds) Rules, 2015, as
amended, ("Ind AS") and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of
affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2021, and its profit (including other comprehensive
Income), changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit of the Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standatds on
Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our
responsibilities under those Standatds ate further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements section of our report. We ate independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chattered
Accountants of India ("ICAI") together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the ICAl's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on
the Ind AS financial statements.

Emphasis of matter - Effects of COVID-19
We draw attention to Note 43 in the financial statements, which describes the economic and
social disruption the entity is facing as a result of COVID-19 which is impacting supply chains!
consumer demand! commodity prices! personnel available for work and or being able to access
offices. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report thereon
The Company's boatd of directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Annual Report including Annexures to
Annual Report but does not include the Ind AS financial statements and our auditor's report
thereon.



Our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially
inconsistent with the Ind AS financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course
of audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

Management's Responsibilities for the Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, other
Comprehensive Income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with
the Ind AS specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
implementation and maintenance of accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that
are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial
statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do
so. Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company's financial
reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Standalone financial statement. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these Ind AS financial statement based on our audit.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:



• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the
Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to
continue as a going concern.

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the Ind AS financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical reqnirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 ("the Order"), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of section 143 (11) of the Companies Act, 2013, we
give in the Annexure-A a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the
Order, to the extent applicable.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of aforesaid Ind AS
financial statement;



b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law related to preparation
aforesaid Ind AS financial statements have been kept by the Company so far as it appears
from our examination of those books;

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including other Comprehensive
Income, Statement of Change in Equity and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this
Report are in agreement with the books of account;

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Ind AS
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015;

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March,
2021 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
31st March, 2021 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of
the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report
in "Annexure-B"; and

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the
best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

1. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in
its Standalone financial statements - Refer Note 30 (B) to the Ind AS financial
statements.

11. The Company has no long-term contracts including derivative contracts as at March 31,
2021;

lll. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended March 31, 2021.

For CHORDIYA & COMPANY

Place: Faridabad
Dated: 19/05/2021



vii) (a) According to the records of the Company, the company is generally
regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Provident fund,
Employees' state insurance, Income tax, Goods & Service tax, Custom
duty, Cess and any other material statutory dues applicable to it, with the
appropriate authorities.

Annexure "A" to the Independent Auditors' Report to the Member of CMR Nikkei India
Private Limited ('the company') on the financial statements for the year ended 31" March

2021.

The Annexure referred to in Paragraph (1) under the heading of "Report on Other Legal
and Regulatory Requirements" of our report for the year ended 31" March 2021.

i) (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars,
including quantitative details and situation of property, plant and equipment.

(b) All the property, plant and equipment have been physically verified by the
management during the year. No material discrepancies were noticed on such
verification.

(c) According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of
our examination of records of company, the title deeds of all immovable
properties are held in the name of the company.

ii) During the year, management has conducted physical verification of inventories
at reasonable intervals and no material discrepancies have been noticed on such
physical verification.

iii) According to information, explanation and representation given by the
management and based upon audit procedure performed, the company has not
granted any loan, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, limited liability
partnerships or other parties covered in the register required under section 189 of
the Companies Act, 2013.

iv) According to information, explanation and representation given by the
management, the company has not granted any loan, made any investment, given
any guarantee and security which require compliances under section 185 & 186
of Act 2013.

v) The company has not accepted any deposits from the public.

vi) We have broadly reviewed the cost records maintained by the Company
prescribed by the Central Government under Section 148 of the Companies Act,
2013 and are of the opinion that prima facie the prescribed cost records have
been maintained. We have, however, not made a detailed examination of the cost
records with a view to determine whether they are accurate or complete.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed
amount payable in respect of Provident fund, Employees' state insurance,
Income tax, Custom duty, Goods & Service tax, Cess and other material
statutory dues were in arrears as at 31" March, 2021 for a period of more
than six months from the date they became payable.
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(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and the
records of the company examined by us, the dues outstanding of income
tax, sales- tax, service tax, goods and service tax, duty of customs, duty
of excise and value added tax on account of any dispute are as follows:-

Name of Nature of Dues Amount Period to which Forum where dispute is
the (in ~ amount relates pending

Statue

Income Demand raised under 3,37,30,000/- April, 2014 to CIT (Appeal), Faridabad
Tax Act, section 69 C of Income March,2015
1961 Tax Act.

Haryana Demand raised 63,04,000/- April, 2015 to The Assistant collector
Value (including interest) under March,2016 (Excise & Taxation),
Added Sale Taxi VAT subject to Rewari, Haryana
Tax Act, genuineness verification
2003 of manual C form.
Haryana Demand raised 34,45,000/- April, 2016 to The JT. Excise &
Value (including interest) under March,2017 Taxation Commissioner
Added Sale Taxi VAT subject to (A), Faridabad, Haryana
Tax Act, genuineness verification
2003 of manual C form.
Haryana Demand raised 4,11,000/- April, 2017 to The JT. Excise &
Value (including interest) under June, 2017 (up to Taxation Commissioner
Added Sale Taxi VAT subject to VAT regime) (A), Faridabad, Haryana
Tax Act, genuineness verification
2003 of manual C form.
Finance Demands (including 1,43,000/- April, 2015 to CESTAT, Haryana
Act, 1994 interest) raised on March,2016

account of non-payment /
short payment of service
tax under reverse charge.

viii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us,
the company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings to a
Financial Institution, Bank, government (both state and central). The company
does not have any outstanding debenture during the year.

ix) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on
our examination of the records, money raised by way of term loan have been
applied by the company during the year for the purpose for which they were
raised.

(b) The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or
further public offer (including debt instruments) during the year.

x) According to information and explanations given to us and based upon the audit
procedures performed during the year, no fraud by the company or any fraud on
the Company by its officers/employees have been noticed or reported during
audit.



xii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
company is not a nidhi company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the order is
not applicable.

xiii) According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our
examination of records of company, transactions with the related parties are in
compliance with Section 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 where applicable
and the details have been disclosed in the Financial Statements etc. as required
by the accounting standards and Companies Act, 2013.

xiv) According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our
examination of records of company, the company has not made any preferential
allotment 1 private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures
during the year.

xv) According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our
examination of records of company, the company has not entered into any non
cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly,
paragraph 3(xv) of the order is not applicable.

xvi) The company is not required to be registered under section 4S-IA of the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934.

For CHORDIYA & COMPANY
Chartere~~~

Dev~~~~~
Partner "",,==,p

M. No. 517638
UDIN: '" '~Ilb '1'b A-AAALG,'" L117

Place: Faridabad
Dated: 19/05/2021



Annexure - B to the Independent Auditors' Report of even date on the Ind AS Financial
Statement of CMR Nikkel India Private Limited.

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143of
the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act")

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of CMR Nikkei India
Private Limited ("the Company") as of 31 March 2021 in conjunction with our audit of the
standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India ('ICAr). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note")
issued by the ICAI and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under section 143(10) of the
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial
controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding
of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial
reporting.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those
policies and procedures that

I) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and

3) Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on
the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject
to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at 31 March 2021, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For CHORDIYA & COMPANY

Place: Faridabad
Dated: 19/05/2021
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CMRNikkel India Private Umlted
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2021
(Amount InRupees Lakhs,unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Notes Forthe vear ended For the year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

REVENUE
Revenue from operations 19 74,501.16 57,263.70Other income 20 53.08 321.43Total Income

74554.24 57585.12
EXPENSES
Cost of raw material and components consumed 21 61.497.86 46,092.90Purchase of traded goods 22 1,OGO.26 1,968.39(Increase)/ Decrease in inventories of finished goods 23 (262.05) 314,73Employeebenefits expense 24 1,589.96 1,491.00Financecosts 25 895.97 621.45Depreciation and amortization expense 26 750.78 693.72Other expenses 27 3960.16 3206.16Total expenses

69492,93 54 388.3S

Profit before tax 5,061.31 3,196.77Tax expense: 7
Current tax 993.15 688,84Mat credtt adjustment
TaxEarlierYear (5.96) 301.47Deferred tax (Creditl/charge relating to earlier periods (8.21) (310.08)

Deferred tax (Creditl/charge 265.94 (134.32Profit for the period/year 3816.39 2650.87

Other Comprehensive Income 28
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Re-measurement gain/(Iosses) on defined benefit plans 1.46 0.05

Income tax effect 10,371 10,01
Other Comprehensive Profit/loss 1.09 0.04

Total Comprehensive Income for the period/year 3,817,49 2,650.91

Eamlnp per share: (nominal value per share of As 10 29
eachl
I) Basic 4.GO 3.19
2i Diluted 4.GO 3.19

Theaccompanying notes are an integral part of the financialstatements.

As per our report of even date

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
of CMRNikkelIndia Private Limited

Place:Faridabad
Oate: May19, 2021

\ ~U'hlk
(Ch;~:'1 Officer)(CompanySecretary)



CMR Nikkel IndiaPrIvnI LImIted
Statement of cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2021
(Amount In Rupees Lakhs, unlas otherwisestated)
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The accompanyinc notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
of CMRNikkellnella Private Umited

"'ace: Faridabad
Date: May 19, 2021 (Company Secretary)



(Company Secretary)
~ ~~Ik
~~::ncial Officer)

CMR Nikkei India Private Umlted
Statement of chanles In equity for the year ended March 31, 2021
(Amount In Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Equity Share capital Other equtty· Reserves and Surplus Total equity
No. of shares Amount Retained Securities Total

eamlnp premium

As at March 31, 2019 8,29,72,975 8,297.30 3,769.50 114.60 3,884.10 12,181.40
Add: Profit for the year . . 2,650.87 . 2,650.87 2,650.87
Add: Other comprehensive income - - 0.04 - 0.04 0.04
Add: Receiveddurlne the "ear - . - - - -
As atMarch 31, 2020 8.29.72.975 8,297.30 6,420.41 114.60 6,535.01 14,832.31
Add: Profit for the year - - 3,816.39 - 3,816.39 3,816.39
Add: Other comprehensive income - - 1.09 - 1.09 1.09
Add: Receivedduring the "ear . - - - - -
As at March 31 2021 82972975 8297.30 10237.89 114.60 10352.50 18 649.79

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date

ForCh"'ll'~~Y
Chart. _), ';-. ~:,;~:'\

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
of CMRNikkei India Private UmHed

Place: Faridabad
Date: May 19, 2021



CMR NIKKEI INOLA PRIVATE LIMITED

1. Corporate information
CMR NIKKEI INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED (the Company) is a Private Limited Company
domiciled in India, incorporated w.e.f. 4th July 2012 under the provisions of Companies Act,
1956.The company is manufacturer of Aluminium based Die Cast Alloys and Zinc Alloys.
These Financial Statements were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the Board
of Directors of the Company in their meeting held on May 19, 2021.

1.1.Basis of preparation
These Standalone Financial Statements (,financial statements') have been prepared in
accordance Indian Accounting Standards (lnd AS) specified under Section 133of the Companies
Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules. 2015 (as amended
from time to time) and presentation requirements of Division II of Schedule III to the Companies
Act, 2013 (IND AS compliant Schedule III), to the extent applicable.

These financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis and under the historical cost
basis, except for the certain financial assets and financial liabilities which have been measured
at fair value as per the requirements of the Ind AS.

The preparation of these financial statements requires the use of certain significant accounting
estimates and judgements. It also requires the management to exercise judgement in applying the
Company's accounting policies. The areas where estimates are significant to the financial
statements, or areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, are disclosed in note
2.23.

All the amounts included in the financial statements are reported in lacs of Indian Rupees
('Rupees' or 'Rs.'), except per share data and unless stated otherwise and rounded off to nearest
lacs.

2. Summary of significant accounting policies
The accounting policies, as set out below, have been consistently applied, by the Company, to
all the years presented in the financial statements.

2.1. Changes in accounting policiesand disclosures
The Ministry of Corporate Affaris ("MCA") has carried out amendments to the following
accounting standards. The effect on adoption of following mentioned amendments had no
impact on the standalone Ind AS financial statements. The Company has not early adopted
any standards or amendments that have been issued but are not yet effective.

(i) Ind AS 116: Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions
(ii) Ind AS 103: Business Combinations
(iii) Ind AS 1 and Ind AS 8: Definition of Material
(iv) Ind AS 107 and Ind AS 109: Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

MCA issued notification dated March 24, 2021 to amend Schedule III to the Companies Act,
2013 to enhance the disclosures required to be made by a Company in its financial statements.
These amendments are effective for financial years starting on or after April 01, 2021.



2.2 Current versus non-current classification
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current! non-current
classification. An asset is classified as current when it is:

i) Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle
ii) Held primarily for the purpose of trading
iii) Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period. or
iv) Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability

for at least twelve months after the reporting period
All other assets are classified as non-current.
A liability is classified as current when:
i) It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle
ii) It is held primarily for the purpose of trading
iii) It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or
iv) There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve

months after the reporting period

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their
realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its
operating cycle.

2.3 Foreign currencies
The Company's financial statements are presented in INR, which is also the company's
functional currency.

Transactions and balances
Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company at their respective
functional currency spot rates at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional
currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date. Exchange differences arising on settlement
or translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items
measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date
when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items
measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on the change in
fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is
recognised in OCI or profit or loss are also recognised in OCI or profit or loss, respectively).



2.4 Fair value measurement
The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance
sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the
liability takes place either:
• Inthe principal market for the asset or liability, or
• Inthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value ofan asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their
economic best interest.

A fair value measurement ofa non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability
to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to
another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.
The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements
are categorized within the following fair value hierarchy based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level I - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is directly or indirectly observable.
Level 3 -Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the
Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re
assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

The Company's management determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair value
measurement, such as derivative instruments and unquoted financial assets measured at fair
value, and for non-recurring measurement, such as assets held for distribution in discontinued
operation.

Extemal valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets and significant Iiabilities. if any.



At each reporting date, the management analyses the movements in the values of assets and
liabilities which are required to be re-measured or re-assessed as per the Company's accounting
policies. For this analysis, the management verifies the major inputs applied in the latest
valuation by agreeing the information in the valuation computation to contracts and other relevant
documents.
The management, in conjunction with the Company's external valuers, also compares the change
in the fair value of each asset and liability with relevant external sources to determine whether
the change is reasonable.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and
liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level
of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

This note summarises accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are
given in the relevant notes.

2.5 Revenue from contract with customer
Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods are transferred
to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods or services. The Company has generally concluded that it is
the principal in its revenue arrangements because it typically controls the goods before
transferring them to the customer.

Sale of goods

Revenue from sale of products is recognised at the point in time when control of the asset is
transferred to the customer. Amounts disclosed as revenue are net of returns and allowances,
trade discounts and rebates. The Company collects Goods & Service Tax (GST) on behalf of the
government and therefore, these are not economic benefits flowing to the Company. Hence, these
are excluded from the revenue.

Variable consideration includes trade discounts, volume rebates and incentives. etc. The
Company estimates the variable consideration with respect to above based on an analysis of
accumulated historical experience. The Company adjusts estimate of revenue at the earlier of
when the most likely amount of consideration expected to receive changes or when the
consideration becomes fixed.

Sale ofservices

Revenue from job work in process is recognised by reference to the stage of completion. Stage
of completion is measured by reference to job work in process at the year end and is recognized
at measured value of conversion charges as increase\ decrease in job work in process. The
Company collects service taxiGoods and Services Tax on job work on behalf of the govemment
and, therefore, it is not an economic benefit flowing to the Company. Hence, it is excluded from
revenue.



Interest income

Interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. EIR is the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected life of the
financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the
financial asset.

Export incentive

Export incentive under the EPCG scheme are accounted in the year of export of goods
considering certainty in the collection of export proceeds.

2.6 Government grant
Government grants are recognised where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be
received and all attached conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense
item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis over the periods that the related costs, for
which it is intended to compensate, are expensed. When the grant relates to an asset, it is
recognised as income on a systematic basis.

When loans or similar assistance are provided by governments or related institutions, with an
interest rate below the current applicable market rate, the effect of this favourable interest is
regarded as a government grant. The loan or assistance is initially recognised and measured at
fair value and the government grant is measured as the difference between the initial carrying
value of the loan and the proceeds received. The loan is subsequently measured as per the
accounting policy applicable to financial liabilities.

2.7 Income Taxes
The income tax expense comprise of current and deferred income tax.

Current income tax
Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered
from or paid to the taxation authorities in accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961 enacted in
India. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or
substantively enacted, at the reporting date in India.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss (either in other
comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the
underlying transaction either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in the Income tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretations and establishes provisions where
appropriate.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the
reporting date.



Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, except:
(a) When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or

liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

(b) In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled
and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of
unused tax credits and any unused tax losses, if any. Deferred tax assets are recognized to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be
utilized, except:

(a) When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or
loss

(b) In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries
and associates, deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that
the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are re-assessed at
each reporting date and are recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future
taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
year when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized outside profit or loss
(either in 'ocr or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognized in correlation to the underlying
transaction either in ocr or directly in equity.

The Company offsets deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities if and only if it has a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets
and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority.



2.8 Property, plant and equipment ('PPE')

An item of PPE is recognised as an asset, if and only if, it is probable that the future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and its cost can be measured reliably.

Capital work in progress and PPE are initially recognised at cost. The initial cost of PPE
comprises its purchase price (including non-refundable duties and taxes and excluding any trade
discounts and rebates), and any directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use.

Subsequent to initial recognition, freehold land is carried at historical cost and other items ofPPE
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. When significant
parts are required to be replaced at regular intervals, the Company recognises such parts as
separate component of assets and depreciates separately based on their specific useful life. When
an item ofPPE is replaced, then its carrying amount is de-recognised from the balance sheet and
cost of the new item ofPPE is recognised.

The expenditures those are incurred after the item ofPPE is available for use, such as repairs and
maintenance, are charged to the statement of profit and loss in the period in which such costs are
incurred. However, in situations where such expenditure can be measured reliably, and is
probable that future economic benefits associated with it will flow to the Company, it is included
in the asset's carrying value or as a separate asset, as appropriate.

Depreciation on PPE is provided on straight line basis using the rates as specified in Part C of
Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013.

Individual items of property, plant and equipment costing up to Rs. 10,000/- is charged to the
statement of profit and loss in the year in which it is purchased or acquired.

The identified components are depreciated separately over their useful lives; the remaining
components are depreciated over the life of principal asset.

The useful lives, residual values and depreciation method of PPE are reviewed, and adjusted
appropriately, at each reporting date. The effect of any change in the estimated useful lives,
residual values and 1 or depreciation method are accounted for prospectively, and accordingly
the depreciation is calculated over the PPE's remaining revised useful life. The cost and the
accumulated depreciation for PPE sold, scrapped, retired or otherwise disposed off are de
recognised from the balance sheet and the resulting gains 1(losses) are included in the statement
of profit and loss within other expenses 1other income.

Transition to Ind AS
On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all its
property, plant and equipment recognised at April 01, 2016 measured as per the previous GAAP
and use that carrying value except accounting for Government grant as the deemed cost of the
property, plant and equipment and capital work-in-progress.

The cost of capital work-in-progress is presented separately in the balance sheet.

2.9 Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial
recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and



accumulated impairment losses. Software is capitalised at the amounts paid to acquire the
respective license for use and is amortised over the period of license not exceeding six years from
the date when the asset is available for use.

The amortisation expense on intangible assets is recognised in the statement of profit and loss on
straight line basis over the estimated useful lives of intangible assets from the date they are
available for use. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset
with a finite useful life are reviewed at each balance sheet date. If expected useful life is
significant different from previous assessment, the change in uscfullife is made on a prospective
basis.

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

Transition to Ind AS

On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all its
intangible assets recognised at April 0 I, 2016 measured as per the previous GAAP and use that
carrying value as the deemed cost of intangible assets.

2.10 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset
that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are
capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period
in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in
connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to
the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

2.11 Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may
be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required,
the Company estimates the asset's recoverable amount. An asset's recoverable amount is the
higher ofan asset's or cash-generating unit's (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value
in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or group of assets.
When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is
considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market
transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate
valuation model is used.



The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations,
which are prepared separately for each of the Company's CGUs to which the individual assets
are allocated. These budgets and forecast calculations generally cover a period of five years. For
longer periods, a long-term growth rate is calculated and applied to project future cash flows after
the fifth year. To estimate cash flow projections beyond periods covered by the most recent
budgets/forecasts, the Company extrapolates cash flow projections in the budget using a steady
or declining growth rate for subsequent years, unless an increasing rate can be justified. In any
case, this growth rate does not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the products,
industries, or country or countries in which the entity operates, or for the market in which the
asset is used. Impairment losses, if any, are recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss as a
component of depreciation and amortisation expense.

A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the
assumptions used to determine the asset's recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was
recognised. The reversal is limited to the extent the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed
its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of
depreciation or amortisation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years.
Such reversal is recognized in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is carried at the
revalued amount, in which case the reverse is treated as a revaluation increase.

2.12 Leases

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if
the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration.

Company as a lessee
The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for
short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Company recognises lease liabilities to
make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

i) Right of use assets
The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date
the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any re-measurement of lease
liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised,
initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less
any lease incentives received.

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Company at the end of the lease term or the cost
reflects the exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful
life of the asset.



ii) Lease liabilities
At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the
present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments are fixed
payments.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing
rate at the lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect
the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying
amount of lease liabilities is re-measured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a
change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to future payments resulting from a change in an
index or rate used to determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an option
to purchase the underlying asset.
The Company's lease liabilities are disclosed separately in the balance sheet.

iii) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
The company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases except
in case of lease contracts with related parties since there exist economic incentive for the
company to continue using the leased premises for a period longer than the II months and
considering the contract is with the related parties, it does not foresee non-renewal of the lease
term for future periods, thus basis the substance and economics of the arrangements, management
believes that under Ind AS 116, the lease terms in the arrangements with related parties have
been determined considering the period for which management has an economic incentive to use
the leased asset (i.e. reasonable certain to use the asset for the said period of economic incentive).
Such assessment of incremental period is based on management assessment of various factors
including the remaining useful life of the asset as on the date of transition. The management has
assessed period of arrangements with related parties as 8 to 9 years as at April 0 I, 2019. Lease
payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

Company as a lessor
Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of an asset are classified as operating leases. Rental income from operating lease is
recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Contingent rents are
recognised as revenue in the period in which they are earned.

2.13 Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value.



Finished goods are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost includes direct materials
and labour and a proportion of manufacturing overheads based on normal operating capacity.
Cost is determined on a weighted average basis.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business. less
estimated costs of completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

2.14 Provisions

General
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as
a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

When the Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an
insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when the
reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the
Statement of Profit and Loss, net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre
tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is
used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.
Provisions are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and adjusted to reflect the current
best estimate. If it is no longer probable that an outflow of resources would be required to settle
the obligation, the provision is reversed.

2.15 Contingent Liabilities and assets
Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events,
the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or a present obligation
that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made.

Contingent assets are disclosed in the financial statements only when an inflow of economic
benefits is probable.

2.16 Employee benefits
The Company's employee benefits mainly include wages, salaries, bonuses, contribution to
plans, defined benefit plans and compensated absences. The employee benefits are recognised in
the year in which the associated services are rendered by the Company employees.

i) Defined contribution plans - Provident fund

Provident fund

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed
contributions into a separate entity and has no qbligation to pay any further amounts. The
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Company makes specified monthly contributions towards provident fund which are defined
contribution plans. The Company has no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the
funds. The Company recognises contribution payable to the fund scheme in the statement of
profit and loss, when an employee renders the related service. If the contribution payable to the
scheme for service received before the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid,
the deficit payable to the scheme is recognised as a liability after deducting the contribution
already paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for services received
before the balance sheet date, then excess is recognised as an asset to the extent that the
prepayment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.

ii) Defined benefit plans - Gratuity

Gratuity

The Company's gratuity benefit scheme is a defined benefit plan. The Company's net obligation
in respect of defined benefit plan is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that
employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods; this benefit is
discounted to determine its present value. Any unrecognised past service costs and the fair value
of any plan assets are deducted. The calculation of the Company's obligation under this plan is
performed annually by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method.

Re-measurements comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the changes to the asset
ceiling (if applicable) are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit
or credit to retained earnings through other comprehensive income in the period in which they
occur. Re-measurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

All other expenses related to defined benefit plans are recognised in statement of profit and loss
as employee benefit expenses. Gains or losses on the curtailment or settlement of any defined
benefit plan are recognised when the curtailment or settlement occurs. Curtailment gains and
losses are accounted for as past service costs.

iii) Other employee benefits
The employees can carry forward a portion of the unutilized accrued compensated absences and
utilise it in future service periods or receive cash compensation during termination of
employment.

Compensated absence, which is expected to be utilized within the next 12months, is treated as
short-term employee benefit. The Company measures the expected cost of such absences as the
additional amount that it expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated
at the reporting date. The Company treats compensated absences expected to be carried forward
beyond twelve months, as long-term employee benefit for measurement purposes. Such long
term compensated absences are provided for based on the actuarial valuation using the projected
unit credit method at the year-end. Actuarial gains/losses are immediately taken to the statement
of profit and loss.

The Company presents the leave liability as a current liability in the balance sheet, to the extent
it does not have an unconditional right to defer its settlement for 12 months after the reporting
date.



2.17 Financial instruments

A fmancial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a
financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Initial recognition

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at amortised cost,
fair value through other comprehensive income (OCI), and fair value through profit or loss.

Inorder for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or fair value through
OCI, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are 'solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI),
on the principal amount outstanding. This assessment is referred to as the SPPI test and is
performed at an instrument level. Financial assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified
and measured at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not
recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair value through
profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the market place
(regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company commits to
purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement

i) Financial assets carried at amortized cost (debt instrument)

A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortized cost if it is held within a business model
whose objective is to hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual
terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal outstanding. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into
account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the
EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the profit or loss.

ii) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (debt instrument)

A financial asset is subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if
it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash
flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates that are solely payments of principal and interest on principal amount outstanding.
Further in cases where the Company has made an irrevocable election based on its business
model, for its investments which are classified as equity instruments the subsequent changes in
fair value are recognized in other comprehensive income.

There are no financial instruments in the Company measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income.

iii) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are subsequently fair value
through profit or loss. C'
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Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest
method or at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss if the criteria under Ind AS 109 are satisfied.
All other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost.

For trade and other payables maturing within one year from the Balance Sheet date, the
carrying amounts approximate the fair value due to the short maturity of these instruments.

a) Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are those contracts that require a
payment to be made to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor
fails to make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial
guarantee contracts are recognised initially as a liability at fair value, adjusted for transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the issuanceof the guarantee. Subsequently, the liability
is measured at the higher of the amount of loss allowance determined as per impairment
requirements of Ind AS 109 and the amount recognised lesscumulative amortization.

b) Borrowings

On initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the EIRmethod. Gainsand lossesare recognised in profit or losswhen the
liabilities are derecognised aswell as through the EIRamortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and
fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR.The EIRamortisation is included as finance
costs in the statement of profit and loss.

Derecognition of financial instruments

The Company derecognizes a financial assetwhen the contractual rights to the cash flows from
the financial asset expire or it transfers the financial asset and the transfer qualifies for de
recognition under INO AS 109. A financial liability (or a part of the financial liability) is
derecognized from the Company's balance sheet when the obligation specified in the contract
is discharged or cancelled or expired.

Fair value of financial Instruments

In determining the fair value of its financial instruments, the Company usesa variety of methods
and assumptions that are based on market conditions and risks existing at each reporting date.
The methods used to determine fair value i"~iscounted cash flow analysis, available.ss-:~1~rF~\:;,,~ ,.,\"c'.',.... .
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quoted market prices and dealer quotes. All methods of assessing fair value result in general
approximation of value, and such value may never actually be realized.

For all other financial instruments the carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the short
maturity of those instruments.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the
standalone balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company applies the expected credit loss model for recognising impairment loss on
financial assetsmeasured at amortised cost, debt instruments at FVTOCI,trade receivables and
other contractual rights to receive cashor other financial asset.

Expected credit losses are the weighted average of credit losses with the respective risks of
default occurring as the weights. Credit loss is the difference between all contractual cashflows
that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the
Company expects to receive (Le. all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original effective interest
rate (or credit-adjusted effective interest rate for purchased or originated credit-impaired
financial assets). The Company estimates cash flows by conslderlng all contractual terms of the
financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar options) through the
expected life of that financial instrument.

The Company measures the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal to the
lifetime expected credit losses if the credit risk on that financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition. If the credit risk on a financial instrument hasnot increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Company measures the loss allowance for that
financial instrument at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses. 12-month
expected credit losses are portion of the life-time expected credit losses and represent the
lifetime cash shortfalls that will result if default occurs within the 12 months after the reporting
date and thus, are not cash shortfalls that are predicted over the next 12 months.

For trade receivables, the Company follows "simplified approach for recognition of impairment
loss.The application of simplified approach does not require the group to track changes in credit
risk.

Further, for the purpose of measuring lifetime expected credit loss allowance for trade
receivables, the Company has used a practical expedient as permitted under Ind AS 109. This
expected credit loss allowance is computed based on a provision matrix which takes into
account historical credit loss experience and adj~d.for forward-looking information.-"'~,-..•~---.,,(, ~f?:'"
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2.18 Derivatives
The Company uses derivative financial instruments such as forward exchange contracts to hedge
risks associated with foreign currency fluctuations.

Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a
derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value. Derivatives are
carried as financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities when the fair
value is negative. Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives are
taken directly to statement of profit and loss.

2.19 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and
short-term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered
an integral part of the Company's cash management.

2.20 Cash dividend
The Company recognises a liability to make cash distributions to equity holders of the parent
when the distribution is authorised and the distribution is no longer at the discretion of the
Company. As per the corporate laws in India, a distribution is authorised when it is approved by
the shareholders. A corresponding amount is recognised directly in equity.

2.21 Segment
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to
the chief operating decision maker. The Chief Operating decision maker reviews business
performance at an overall Company level as one segment "Aluminium ingots and zinc based
Alloys.".

2.22 Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss attributable to equity
holder of the Company (after deducting preference dividends and attributable taxes) by the
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. Partly paid equity shares
are treated as a fraction of an equity share to the extent that they are entitled to participate in
dividends relative to a fully paid equity share during the reporting period. The weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding during the year is adjusted for events such as bonus issue.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company and the weighted average number of shares
outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

2.23 Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions
The preparation of the Company's financial statements requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses,
assets and liabilities, and the accompanying ~Iosures, and the disclosure of contingent
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liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that
require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future
periods.

Judgements
In the process of applying the Company's accounting policies, management has made the
following judgements, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
standalone financial statements:

a) Contingencies
Contingent liabilities may arise from the ordinary course of business in relation to claims against
the Company, including legal, contractor, land access and other claims. By their nature,
contingencies will be resolved only when one or more uncertain future events occur or fail to
occur. The assessment of the existence, and potential quantum, of contingencies inherently
involves the exercise of significant judgments and the use of estimates regarding the outcome of
future events.

b) Revenue recognition and presentation
The Company assesses its revenue arrangements against specific criteria, i.e. whether it has
exposure to the significant risks and rewards associated with the sale of goods or the rendering
of services, in order to determine if it is acting as a principal or as an agent. The Company has
concluded that they operating on a principal to principal basis in all its revenue arrangements.



Estimates and assumptions
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The
Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial
statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments,
however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control
ofthe Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

a) Impairment of non-financial assets
Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its
recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in
use. The fair value less costs of disposal calculation is based on available data from binding sales
transactions, conducted at arm's length, for similar assets or observable market prices less
incremental costs for disposing of the asset. The value in use calculation is based on a DCF
model. The cash flows are derived from the budget for the next five years and do not include
restructuring activities that the Company is not yet committed to or significant future investments
that will enhance the asset's performance of the CGU being tested. The recoverable amount is
sensitive to the discount rate used for the DCF model as well as the expected future cash-inflows
and the growth rate used for extrapolation purposes. These estimates are most relevant to
goodwill and other intangibles with indefinite useful lives recognised by the Company.

b) Defined benefit plans (gratuity benefits)
The present value of the gratuity is determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation
involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future.
These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates.
Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit
obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at
each reporting date.

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate
discount rate for plans operated in India, the management considers the interest rates of
government bonds in currencies consistent with the currencies of the post-employment benefit
obligation. The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables for the specific
countries. Those mortality tables tend to change only at interval in response to demographic
changes. Future salary increases and gratuity increases are based on expected future inflation
rates for the respective countries.

c) Allowance for uncollectible trade receivables
Trade receivables generally do not carry any interest and are stated at their nominal value as
reduced by appropriate allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts. Individual trade
receivables are written off when management deems them not to be collectible.

d) Property, plant and equipment
The carrying value of property, plant and equipment has been disclosed in note 3.



e) Intangible assets
The carrying value of intangible assets has been disclosed in note 4.

I) Fair value measurement of financial instruments
When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet
cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using
valuation techniques including the DCF model. The inputs to these models are taken from
observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is
required in establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations ofinputs such as liquidity
risk, credit risk and volatility.

Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial
instruments.

g) Leases - Estimating the incremental borrowing rate
The Company cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in the lease, therefore, it uses its
incremental borrowing rate (lBR) to measure lease liabilities. The lBR is the rate of interest that
the Company would have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security, the
funds necessary to obtain an asset ofa similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic
environment. The lBR therefore reflects what the Company 'would have to pay', which requires
estimation when no observable rates are available or when they need to be adjusted to reflect the
terms and conditions of the lease. The Company estimates the IBR using observable inputs (such
as market interest rates) when available.

h) Leases - Estimating the period of lease contracts with related parties
In case oflease contracts with related parties, there exist economic incentive for the Company to
continue using the leased premises for a period longer than the IImonths. The period of expected
lease in these cases is a matter of estimation by the management. The estimate of lease period
impacts the recognition of ROU asset, lease liability and its impact of statement of profit and
loss. The lease terms in the arrangements with related parties have been determined considering
the period for which management has an economic incentive to use the leased asset (i.e.
reasonably certain to use the asset for the said period of economic incentive). Such assessment
of incremental period is based on management assessment of various factors including the
remaining useful life of the asset as on the date of transition. The management has assessed period
of arrangements with related parties as 8 to 9 years as at April 0 I, 2019.

i) Determining the lease term of contracts with renewal and termination options _
Company as lessee
The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with
any periods covered by an option to extend the lease ifit is reasonably certain to be exercised, or
any periods covered by an option to terminate the lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be
exercised.

The Company has several lease contracts that include extension and termination options. The
Company applies judgement in evaluating whether it is reasonably certain whether or not to
exercise the option to renew or terminate the lease. That is, it considers all relevant factors that
create an economic incentive for it to exercise either the renewal or termination. After the
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commencement date, the Company reassesses the lease term if there is a significant event or
change in circumstances that is within its control and affects its ability to exercise or not to
exercise the option to renew or to terminate.

j) Estimation uncertainty relating to the global health pandemic on COVID-19
The Company has made detailed assessment of its liquidity position for the next year and the
recoverability and carrying value of its assets comprising property, plant and equipment,
intangible assets, right of use assets, investments, inventory and trade receivables. Based on
current indicators of future economic conditions, the Company expects to recover the carrying
amount of these assets.

The situation is changing rapidly giving rise to inherent uncertainty around the extent and timing
ofthe potential future impact of the COVID-19 which may be different from that estimated as at
the date of approval of these standalone Ind AS statements.
The Company will continue to closely monitor any material changes arising of future economic
conditions and impact on its business.



CMR Nlkkellnella Private Limited
Notes to flnllndal statements for the year endedMardi 31, 2021
(Amount in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwfse stated)

3. Property, Plant and Equipment

I .uUdI.p Road. PI.... nd Fum;'u,.' 10000<o , d ... Vehides Tot.1 C... "'_'. ROUAssets..
C.. ,

1.1~.: 2.571 ....As at Mardi 31, 2019 96.32 3,921.79 35.47 48.17 26.66 126.21 7,991.14 2,016.56
Additions 1,041.17

1,64:·:~1
4.51 17.56 4.03 7.78

2.79~::)
240.23

Disposals I adjustments 11.481 0.84
31,2020 '1.53

AddOlo., 197.72 1.13 12.94 5.65 36.67 254.13 214.02'
",.".".1. (3.161 (.:~:~ ':~~' ::~:: (~:~:' (4.021 (1'~::'

31, 1021 a,

IAs It M."" ". 2019 163.32 44.01 787.86 6.09 11.80 9.03 36.99 1,059.10Ic';.~ ~~ ..... 10.11 514.32 3.92 :~~, 7.19 17.41 652.63 30.65
17.63 10.051 __ll!mI••••

I~a'le for the year 114.31 10.08 541.83 4.29 11.01 7.57 ~~:~!1 709.70 30.65ID"~'" (• .541
14~:~: '!:~' :~:~: (~:~'

~31,2021 ~ 73.77 61.29

1="".1.2019 1,165.08 2,4D8.12 52.31 3,133.93 29.38 ..... 17.63 89.22 6,932.04 2.016.56
1,244.02 3,359.66 42.20 :!!:!: 29.97 42.7. 15." 79." ::::::: 5Il3.22 ~::1.244., 3,242.7' 31.12 ".70 ...., 12•• ' 92.87 7.7.2A

• The nwnbers reported .re net (additions' deletions).

NoteonP~atfw expenses (Ind!.MIedInca~ work InptOJreSS)..-.. As .tMardi 31. 2021 As atM.rth] 202.
OpeninsPre-operatlve 82.97I._.~,
less: capitaliseddurinSthe 82.97

t
Balance carried forward .



CMRNikkei India Private Umlted
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
(Amount in RupeesLakhs, unless otherwise stated)

4. Intangible Assets

Particulars Computer
Software

Gross block
As at March 31, 2019 56.27
Additions 0.56
Disposals -

As at March 31 2020 56.83
Additions -
DisDosals -

As at March 31 2021 56.83

Amortisation
As at March 31. 2019 28.S8
Chargefor the year 10.47
Dlsposals -
As at March 31 2020 39.05
Chargefor the year 10.47
Disposals .
As at March 31 2021 49.52

Net block
Asat March 31 2019 27.69
As at March 31 2020 17.78
As at March 31 2021 7.31



CMR Nikkel India PrIvate Umlted
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31. 2021
(Amount In Rupees Llkhs, unless otherwise stated)

5. Loans (at amortised cost)
Non-current Current

Asa.
March 31, 2021

Asa.
March 31, 2020

Asa.
March 31, 2021

Aso.
March 31. 2020

Security deposits
Unsecured, considered good 45.37 44.62 1.70

Loansl Advances to employees
Unsecured. considered good 6.73

45.37 44.62 8.43

6. Other Financialassets (at amortised cost)

Non-current Current

Otherfinandala~
Interest accrued on fixed deposits and others
Depositswith remaining maturity of more than 12
months"
Unbilledrevenue
Totol

Aso. As at
March 31 2021 March 31 2020

0.03
18.74 0.50

0.00
18.74 0.53 25.23

As at As at
March 31 2021 March 31 2020

3.88 25.23

1 966.57
1,970.45

·Deposits with original maturity of more than 12months are held as margin money against the BankGuarantee.

8. Other CUrrent/Non CUrrent ISSets
Non-current Current

As at As at Asat As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020 March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Unsecured, considered lood
Balancewith Statutory! Government Authorities 2,090.27 1,184.84

Capital advances 91.92 113.52
Recoverablefrom related parties# 4.26 33.44
Advanceto suppliers

-Related Parties" 3.972.69 2,696.95
-Others 188.67 48.53

Prepaid expenses 4.88 19.03 12.23
Bankcharges recoverable 0.17 2.05
Totol 96.80 113.52 6275,09 3978.05

·Enterprises owned or si&niflcantlyInfluenced by key manalement personnel and their relatives
Advance to suppliers
SanjivaniNon FerrousTrading Private limited

-Other recoverable
CMR-ChihoRecyclingTechn. Pvt. Ltd.
CMR AluminiumPrivate Umited
-Joint Venture Partner
Other recollerable
NikkelMCAluminiumCo Ltd

3,972.69 2,696.95

3.62
0.64

1.91

31.54

7.52

7.44

14.96



CMR Nlkkellndll PrMte Umited
Notes to finandal statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
(Amount In Rupees Laths, unless otherwise stated)

7. Income tax
The major components of income tax expense for the year ended 31 March, 2021 and 31 March, 2020 are:
Statement of profit and loss:

Tax Expense:
Current income tax charse
Adjustments in respect of current income tax of previous period
Odened ttIX:
Relatingto orislnation and reversal of temporary diffef"encesrelatlns to
earlier periods
Relating to orisination and reversal of temporary differences relating to
current period
Income tax expense reported In the statement of profit or loss

Au,
March 11 2021

Au'
March 11 2020

993.15
(5.96)

265.94

688.84
301.47

(8.l1) (310.08)

(134.32)

545.911244.92

OClsectlon
Deferred tax reJtstft to Items recognised InOCI dUring 1M ~rlod:

Net loss! (gain) on re-measurements of defined benefit plans
Incom. tax ch.... ed to OCt

Au.
March 31, 2021

0.37

Au,
March 31, 2020

0.01
0.37 0.01

Recondliatlon of tax expense and the accountlna profit multiplied by India's domestic taJI rate for March 31. 2021, March 31, 2020.
As. at As. at

March 31. 2021 March 31. 2020

5061.31 3,196.78
5,061.31 3,196.78
1.273.83 804.56

15.961 301.47
(225.80)

(a.21) (310.08)
13.45 0.57

(28.19) (24.81)
1,244.92 545.91

1244.92 545.91

Balance sheet

Accounting profit before tax from continuing operations
Accountlns profit before income tax
At Indla's statutory income tax rate of 25.168%
Adjustments in respect of current income tax of previous periods
Deferred tax expense charged in current year due to change in rate
Deferred tax expense In relation to earlier years
Effect of expenditure not allowable under Income TaxAct, 1961
Others
At the effective Income tax ratIt of 25.~ (Marth 31, 2020: 25.168")

Income tax expense reported Inthe statement of profit and loss

Deferred tax: Statement of profit and loss
A".

March 31, 2021
As at As. at

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Deferred tax relates to the following:
Deferred tax,Uobll_,
Pro~rty, plant and equipment
43 b Uability_lOx ......
Provisionfor employee benefits and preliminary expenses
MATcredit entitlement
Effect of expenditure debited to statement of Profit and Loss in the
current! earlier years but allowable for tex purpose in the followingyears

(510.37)
(435.28)

13.61

Au'
March 31, 2020

1.13

(439.00) P1.37)
(249.47) (185.80)

13.40 0.21

2.27 11.131

(672.801 1258.101

Asa. As"
March 31. 2021 March 31. 2020

14.74 15.67
(945.651 (688.471
930.90 672.80

Asa. Asa.
March 31. 2021 March 31, 2020

672.80 814.21
257.73 (444.41)
0.37 0.01

302.99
930.90 672.81

77.07
377.98

12.181
(302.99)
(8.47)

Total deferred tax assets! (llabilldes) (Net) 1930.90) 141.40

Reflected In the balance sheet as follows!

Deferred tax assets
Deferred tax liability
Deferred Tax Ulbilitiul (Asset) (Net)

RecondDation of deferred tax UabUitles (net):

Openi,. balance
Taxincome! (expense) dUringthe period recognised in profit or loss
Tax incomel (expense) during the period recognised InOCI
Change in MATcredit entitlement
Closlnl balance of deferred tax lI.bilities! (asset) (Net)



CMR Nllckellndla Private Umlted
Notes to flnandal statements for the year endedMarch 31, 2021
(Amount In Rupees La""s. unless otherwise stated)

9. Inventories
Asa' Asa'

Rawmaterials {Including Rs. 1,508.34 Lakhs (March
31.2020: R,. 1003.62lakhslln transit}"
Finished goods
Stores and spares

March31.2Q21 March31 2Q2Q
6,035.25 3457.71

1,157.00 894.95
113.09 108.62

Total 7,305.34 4.461.28
"Includes Rs. 20.12 lakhs in transit of holding company, Century Metal Recycling Limited and Rs. 156.81 lakhs in transit of other related

entities.

10. Trade receivables

As at
March 31, 2021

As at
March 31, 2020

Trade receivables
-Related Parties·
-Others

Total

937.80
9,005.10

1,002.87
6,230.54

9,942.90 7,233.41

Outstandlnc for a period exceedlne six months
fromthe date they are due for payment
Unsecured, considered good

-Related Partles'"
-others

367.19

367.19

937.80 635.68
9005.10 6230.54
9,942.90 6,866.22

9942.90 7233.41

773.97 1,001.23

163.83

1.64

Other receivables
Unsecured, considered good

-Related Parties"
-Others

Total Trade receivables

-fellow Subsidiaries (Subsidiary of Holdina Company):

CMR Toyotsu Aluminium India Private Umited

*Joint Venture Partner:-

Nikkei MC Aluminium Co Umited

*Enterprlses owned or significantly Influenced by key management personnel and their relatives
CMR-chiho Recycling Techn. Pvt. ltd.

Notes:-
1.For terms and conditions relating to related party receivables, refer Note 31
2. Trade receivables are generally non·interest bearing and are generally on terms of 0 to 90 days
3. Entire trade receivables of the Company have been hypothecated! mortgaged to secure borrowings of the Company (refer note 13)

11. (i) cash and cash equivalents

Asa' Asa'
March 31. 2021 March 31. 2020

Cash on hand 1.78 3.82
Balances with banks:
- Current account 1.55 1.08
- Cash credit account 19.74
Total 23.07 4.90



CMR NlkkellndJ. Private Umited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
(Amount InRupees Lalths,unless otherwise stated)

(n) Other bank balance

Detailsof other bank balances is as follows:
As at Asat

March 31, 2021 March 31. 2020

4.86 48.20

18.14 0.50

23.60 48.70

(18.74) (0.50)

4.86 48.20

Depositswith remaining maturity of less than 12
months·"
Depositswith remaining maturity of more than 12
months=

Less : Disclosed under Other finandalassets (refer
note 6)

"Deposits with remaining maturity of more than 12 months are held as margin money against the BankGuarantee .
....Depositswith remaining maturity of less than 12 months are held as margin money against the Letter of credit and BankGuarantees.

Note:-
Entire Cash and Cash equivalents and deposits with banks of the Company have been hypothecated/mortgaged to secure borrowings of the
Company(refer note 13)

Forthe purpose of the statement of cash flow, cash and cash equivalents comprise of the following:

Asat Asat
March 31 2021 March 3' 2020

1.78 3.82

1.55 1.08
19.74
23.07 4.90

Cashon hand
Balances with banks:
- Current account
- Cashcredit account
rotol



CMR Nikkei India PrIvate Umked
Notes to ftnandal statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
(Amount in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

12. SUre Capital

Asat Aut
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

8,500.00 8500.00

8.500.00 8.500.00

8,297,30 8.297 lO

8,297.30 8,297.30

8,29,72,975 8,29,72,975

8,29,12,975 8,29.72.975

Authorised shares
85,000,000 (March 31, 2020: 85,OOO,OOO)equity shares of Rs. 10 each

Total Authorised Share capital

Issuedshares.subsaibed and fully paid .up shares
82,972,975IMarch 31, 2020: 82,972/975) equity shares of Rs. 10 each

(a) Recondliatlon of no. of shares

Equity Shares
At the beginning of the year
Issued durina: the year
At the end of the year

(bl Terms/ ....hts attached to equity shares:
The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of Rs 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share and entitled to receive
dividends as declared from time to time.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive any of the remaining assets of the Company, after dtstnbutlcn of all
preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of Equity Sharesheld by the Shareholders

Ic J DetaUs of shareholders holdlne more than 5" shares In the company

Name of the shareholder As at March 31. 2021 As at March 31. 2020
No. of shares % holdinl in the

equity shares
No. of shares %holding in the

equity shares

Century Metal RecyclinSUmited
Nikkei MCAluminium Co.Ltd

6,14,00,000
2,15,72,975

74.00%
26.00%

6.14,00.000
2,15,72,975

74.00%
26,00%

Total 8.29,72,975 100% 8.29,72.975 100%

(d) The Company h.s not Issued any shares pursuant to any contract wtthout payment being received In cash or as fully paid up by way of bonus shares. The Company
has not boucht back any shares.

(e) Shares held by hoIdl,., company
Name of the shareholder As at March 31. 2021 As at March 31, 2020

Century Metal Recyclingtlmlted

No. of shares "holdlne in the
equity shares

6,14,00,000 74.00%

No. of shares " holding in the
equity shares

6,14,00,000 74.00%



CMR Nlkktllndil Privllte Umlted
Notes to f1Mnct.1 statements for the year ended Mardi 31. 2021
(Amount In Rupeft Lailhs, unless otherwise stated,

13. Bonowlnp

Details of borrowl. Ire al foRows:
Non-current Current

From Banks

A...
Mlrch 31.2021

A...
March 31 2020

A...
March 31 2021

As at
March 31 2020-Term loan from banks

Worklnll capital loan

Cash credit
Vehicle Loans

881.71 1,462.10 905.57 629.27
2.500.00 500.00

330.18 2,106.73
0.52

0.00 32.60

(905.57) (629.79)

2,830.18 2,639.33

Unsecured
Bills discounted (HDFC)
CUrr.nt maturity of non curl'tlnt borrowlnp
Amount dubbed under "otner flnandalliabilitles"

Tob' 881.71 1,462.10

NoW,
(1) Detafls of borrowinp and Unamortised Interest cost:-

Indian rupee loan "'0' 1468 01 90962 "'38Less: Una mortised Interest Cost p.l1! (5.91! (4.04) (6.11!Carrtln, value 881.71 1462.10 905.57 629.27

IDa. Loan Amount Rate of Interest Repayment Terms of Security for borrowinlS
(Amount In Rs.laths) of borrowinp borrowin,! outltandinl outstandin,

outstandlnl

Vehicle loin
HDFCbank March 31, 2021- Nil 9.70% 47 monthly installment of Refer Note B below

March 31, 2020 - 0.52 "'. 0.18 Lakhs each
ccmmendng from

Indian Ru IDa.
Shinhan Bank March 31, 2021-1577.54- MCLR+O.35" teen repayable ;n rs Refer Note C below

March 31, 2020 - 2,103.39 quarterly installments
commenCing from 20th
September 2019. InstaJiment
amount is proportionate to
disbursement of Loan,
currently R, 161.S0 Lakhs
per quarter

State Bank Of India March 31, 2021- 215.90 7._ 18 monthly in§tallment Refer Note A below
March 31, 2020 - Nil commencing from

27.11.2020.

NoW,
Natun of Stcurtty·

A Term Loan I FCNRBTerm Loan from S8I

al Primary: 'Term Loan from 5BI is secured by First Charge over the entire Current assets of the company (both present and future), on pari-passu basis with other worting
capitai lender.

bl Collateral: First challle ranklnl pari-passu with working capital lender over the entire fixed assets of the company ( excluding charge of Stnnhan Sank for its Term Loan of
Rs 2800.00laths on the fixed assets at Gujrat plant of company), present and future, at including equitable mortaage of factory land & building at Plot no. 65, Sector 15,
Bawallnclustrial area, Bawal, Harvana.

c) Corporate Guarantee Given by Century Metal Recyclin. Limited & Nikkei Me Aluminium Co. Ltd.

BVehkle Loan from HDfC
Vehide loan was secured by way of Hypothecation of respective Vehicle.

C Term lOIIn from Shlnhan .. ok

a) Term loan from 5hinhan Bank is secured hypothecation of Plant & Machinery installed in the factory building at Survey No. 676 & 677 village vance Taluka Dasada,
District Surendranagar Gujrat - 382750

b) Simple/Registered mortgale of land situated at Survey No. 676 & 677 village Vanod Taluka Dasada, District 5urendranag.u Gujral • 382750
c) Simple!Registered mortlqe of building constructed under Survey No. 676 & 677 viiiage Vanod Taluka Oasada, District Surendranagar Gujrat 382750
d) Corporate Guarantee Given by Holding Company Century Metal Recycling Limited
el Personal Guarantee by the directors of the Company Mr. Gauri Shankar Agarwala and Mr. Mohan Agarwal
f) Out of sanction of Rs 2800.00 laths, Rs. 2569.03 ----.. nly.

a \ "O"~ Q- ",.

(1(~ C()~~~,
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CMR Nikkei India PrIvate limited
Notes to ftnandaI statements for the .,.... ended Mardi 31, 2OZ1
(Amount InRupees Lakhs,unless otharwiH stated)

The security and nte of Interest of the above loans .re as .lYen ,...... LoanAmaunt in Rs. LIIkhs Rate of Interest Repayment tenns Security
durin. the period

Cosh..- __
State BankOf India March 31, 2021- Nil 7.70%to 9.35% Repayable on demand geter Notes a to ( below

March 31, 2020 - 1160.51

HDFCBank March31, 2021- 330.18 7.75%to 9.25% Repayableon demand ReferNotesd & e below
March31, 2020 - 946.22

W.... co I demand Ioans--IndianRuPHS (secured
State BankOf India Matdl31, 2021- 2500.00 7.50% Fora period not ex~ing 3 ReferNotes a to c below

March31. 2020 - 500.00 months from drawdown
BIDdlscountl from banks Unsecured
HDFCBank March31, 2021- Nil 7.25" to 9.00% Fora period not exceeding :3 Unsecured

March31, 2020 - 32.60 months 'rom drawdown
date

below

...... at Security
State Bank Of l..cUa : •
al Primary:WOfkInlCapftal Loanis secured by first charse on the entire current assets on pari -passu basis of the company with other Workingcapital lender (Consortium
Member) both present & future, IndudiOJ hypothecation of all stocks of raw material, stores, spares, stOck-In-process.finished goods, etc. Iyin. in factory, godowns,
elsewhere and indudln. goods in translt and receivables! Book debt. Hypothecation of Stock& Receivables

b) Collaterals:Extensionof Charp over the fixed assets of the company includingEquitableMortgage of factory land & Buildingat Plot No.65, Sector-lS, Bawal-12350l,
Haryana.

cl Corporate Guarantee Givenby CenturyMetal RecyciinsUmited&NikkeiMeAluminiumCo. ltd.
HDFCa.nk:-
al Primary:First pari passu charge on current assets, stock and book debts.
bl Secondary:
1.Secondpari pa$5ucharse on ImlTlO'W'ablefixed assets at Plot No.65, Sector IS, BawallndustrlalArea, Bawal,Harvana
2. Secondpari passu chara:eon movable fixed assets at Plot No.65, Sector 15, BawallndustrialArea, Bawa!.Haryana



CMR Nikkei India Private Umited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
(Amount in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

14. Provisions

Provision for employee benefits
Provision for leave encashment
Provision for gratuity

Non-current Current
As at Asat

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
As at Asat

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

28.57 23.97

23.1828.57 23.97

15.Other current/non current liabilities

Statutory dues
Interest on income tax
Advance from Customers
CSRto be deposited in fund
Deferredgovernment grant

Non-current

24.80
0.71

22.86
0.32

25.51

Current
Asat

March 31, 2020
As at As at

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
As at

March 31, 2021

145.70

85.03
23.65
13.27
50.48

54.26
2.16

22.72

79.14145.70 172.43



CMR Nikkel India Private limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
(Amount In RupeesLakhs,unlessotherwise stated)

16.Trade payables (at amortised cost)

Details oftrade payables Isas follows:
Current

Trade payables
Dues to micro and small enterprises
Dues to others

·RelatedParties(ReferNote 31)·
·Others

As at
March 31, 2021

AS at
March 31, 2020

7,919.67
2,473.73

3398.62
1544.67

Total 10,393.40 4,943.29

*includes
Century Metal Recycling Limited (Inclusive of procurement

commissionpayable)
CMRChiho Industries India Private Limited

7,874.76 3,398.62

44.91

Termsand conditions of the above financial liabilities:
a) Trade payables (other than related parties) are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on 0-60
daysterms
b) Forterms and conditions with related parties, refer note 31

17.Other financial liabilities

a) Details of other financial liabilities carried is asfollows:
Current

Asat
March 31, 2021

Asat
March 31, 2020

Other Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Current maturities of long term borrowings (Referto note 13)
Securitydeposits
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings
Employeerelated payables
Creditorsfor capital expenditure

905.57
1.92

29.16
37.95

101.74

629.79
9.93
24.20
41.30
191.01

1,076.34 896.23

b) Breakup of financial liabilities at amortised cost:
As at Asat

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

3,711.89 4,101.44
10,393.40 4.749.66

205.90 224.41
1076.35 896.23

15,387.53 9,971.74

As at Asat
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

152.94 4.42
152.94 4.42

Borrowings(Referto note 13)
Tradepayables(Referto note 16)
LeaseLiabilities
Other financial liabilities

18. Current tax liabilities (net)



CMRN1kkellndla Private Umlted
Notes to flnancill statements for the year ended Marth 31, 2021
(Amount In Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

19. Revenue from operatlons For the year ended
March 31, 2021

For the yelr ended
March 31, 2020

Revenue from operations
Sale of products

Manufactured goods
Traded goods

51,524.27
1,076.62

44,855.74
1.985.51

Other operatllll revenue:
Sale of servlces'"
Sale of Scrap and others-·
Export Incentive
Total revenue from operations

330.33
21,310.06

259.88
74.501.16

35.84
10,341.68

44.93
57,263,70

- Sale of services was in the nature of job works executed .
•• Sale of scrap and other is in the nature of segregated scrap, ash and residue sales.

20. Other Income
For the yair ended
Marth 31, 2021

For the year ended
Mlrdl31. 2020

Interest on fixed deposits
interest on receivables and others
Miscellaneous Income
Uquidated damage levied on customer
Sundry balance write Back Inetl
Exchange fluctuation (net)
Total

0.90
12.31
10.87

6.10
5.44
4.78

300.00
22.03
6.98

53.08
5.11

321.43

21. Cost of materill consumed
The details of cost of materill consumed Is as follows:

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2021 Marth 31, 2020

3,457.71 6.636.92
64.075.40 42,913.69
(6.035.25) (3.457.71)

61.497.86 46,092.90

For the year ended For the year ended
Marth 31. 2021 March 31. 2020

1.060.26 1,968.39

1,060.26 1,968.39

For the year ended For the year ended
MaKh 31. 2021 MaKh 31. 2020

894.95 1,109.68

1,157.00 894.95

(262.05) 310.73

Raw materials:
Opening stock
Add: Purchases during the period
Less:Closingstock

Total

22. PUKhase of Stock In Trade

Purchase of traded goods

23. Change In inventory of work in prosress and finished goods

Opening stock:
Finished goods
less: Closingstock:
Finished goods

Total

24. Employee benefits expense
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31. 2021 Marsh 31. 2020

Salaries, wages and bonus
Contribution to provident and other funds
Gratuity
Staff wetfare expenses

1,429.77 1,367.37
24.22 23.39
7.81 8.46

•
;;;::::::~1!2~8~.1~6::::::::~~9~1~.7~81,589.96 1,491.00

Disclosure In compliance with Ind *19 on Employee Benefits has been given in Note 32



CMRNikkei India Private Umlted
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31. 2021
(Amount In Rupees lakhs.unless otherwise stated)

25. Finance CO$f:

Interest on rupee term loans & others
- On borrowings and ethers"
- Interest on balances of related parties (Refer to Note 31)

- Interest cost on leased liabilities
Exchange fluctuations regarded as an adjustment to Interest
costs
Other finance costs

• Including Interest on Income tax of 23.64lakhs ( March 31, 2020: 2.16 Lakhs)

26. Depredation and amortization expense

Depreciation of tangible assets (Refer to note 3)
Depredation of Right-of-use assets (Refer to note 3)
Amortization of intangible assets (Refer to note 4)

27. Other expenses

Power and fuel
Rent
Insurance
Rates and taxes
Repair and maintenance- Plant & machinery
Repair and maintenance- Building
Repair and maintenance- Others
Printing and stationery
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment (net)
Advertisement, publicity and sales promotion
Travelling and conveyance
Auditor's remuneration
Security charges
Vehicle Running Expenses
freight and forwarding
legal and professional
Stores & spares consumed
Packing material consumed
Procurement commission
Bank charges
Sundry balance write off (net)
Provision for doubtful custom duty recoverable
Charity and donation
Corporate Social Responsibility
Communication expenses
Miscellaneous expenses

Details of payment made to auditors Is as follows:

As auditor:
- Statutory audit fee
- Tax audit fee
T_I

for the year ended
March 31, 2021

for the year ended
March 31, 2020

422.89

447.96
19.94

402.53

180.98
21.50

5.18
895,97

6.00
10.44

621,45

for the year ended
March 31, 2021

for the year ended
March 31. 2020

709.66
30.65
10.47

652.60
30.65
10.47

750.78 693.72

for the year ended for the year ended
March 31. 2021 March 31. 2020

1,926.78 1,738.40
93.20 86.40
26.41 12.82
15.55 15.23

240.91 195.84
4.14 3.45
9.11 16.12
4.22 6.11
14.35 1.11
0.34 2.63
10.80 32.22
4.00 4.00
7.74 36.15
1.04 7.18

598.58 232.94
32.37 27.55

193.27 146.71
26.91 17.53

592.90 336.46
20.62 18.51

1.28
193.62
0.11

53.43
12.69 9.92
70.80 63.87

3.960.16 3206,16

for the year ended
March 31. 2021

for the year ended
March 31, lOlO

3.50
0.50

3.50
0.50

4.00 4.00



CMR Nikkei India Private Umlted
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
(Amount in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

280 Componentsof Other Comprehensive Income

The disaggregationof changesto OCIby each type of reserve in equity is shown below:

For the year ended
March 31, 2021

For the year ended
March 31, 2020

Reomeasurementgains/ (losses)on defined benefit plans
Income tax effect

1.46
(0037)

0.05
(0.01)

1009 0004

290 Earningsper share (EPS)

BasicEPSamounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the company by the
weighted averagenumber of equity sharesoutstanding during the year.

Diluted EPSamounts are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders of the company by the weighted
averagenumber of equity shares outstanding during the period plus the weighted average number of equity shares that
would be issuedon conversionof all the dilutive potential equity sharesinto equity shares.

Thefollowing reflects the Income and share data used in the basicand diluted EPScomputations:

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Profit attributable to the equity holders
Weighted averagenumber of eqUity sharesfor basicand diluted EPS

3,816.39
8,29,72,975

2,650.87
8,29,72,975

Basicand diluted earnings per share (face value INR10per share). 4.60 3.19

·There is no convertible sharehence, diluted EPSis equal to basicEPS



CMR Nikkel India Private Umlted
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
(Amount In Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

30. Commitment and Contingencies

A. capital and Other Commitments

Amount in RS.lakhs'

Particulars As at As at
March 31 2021 March 31 2020

Estimated amount of contracts (net of advances) remaining to be executed on capital account and 257.76 73.22
not provided for

B. Contingent liabilities

Amount in Rs. Lakhs

Particulars As at As at
March 31 2021 March 31 2020

- Demand raised under section 69 C of Income Tax Act for A.Y. 2015-16, and the company has paid
Rs 67.50 Lakhs as 20% of the total demand under protest which is appearing under the head
"Balance with statutory/ government authorities" in "Other Current Assets" in Note B to the 337.30 337.30
Financial Statements.The Company is in appeal before CITAppeals.

- Demand raised (including interest) under Sale TaxI VAT subject to genuineness verification of
manual C form for A.Y. 15-16 and proceedings pending before The Assistant collector (Excise & 63.04 63.04

. Rewari.
- Demand raised (including interest) under Sale TaxI VAT subject to genuineness verification of
manual C form for A.Y. 16-17 and proceedings pending before The JT. Excise & Taxation 34.45 33.17Commissioner (A), Faridabad, Haryana (CST Rs.32.41 Lakhs+VAT Rs.2.04 Lakhs)

- Demand raised (including interest) under Sale Taxi VAT subject to genuineness verification of
manual C form for A.Y. 17-18 and proceedings pending before The JT. Excise & Taxation

4.11 3.02Commissioner (A), Faridabad, Haryana (CST Rs.2.44 Lakhs + VAT RS.1.67Lakhs)

- Demands (including interest) raised on account of non payment / short payment of service tax
5.39under reverse charge and proceedings pending before CESTAT,Haryana 1.43

C. Guarantees Amount in Rs. Lakhs
Particulars As at As at

March 31 2021 March 31 2020
Bank zuarentees issued bv bank 86.31 76.31
Letter of credit issued bv bank 0.00 15.21
Total 86.31 91.51



CMR Nikkel India Private Umited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
(Amount In Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

31. Related Party Transactions

In accordance with the requirements of IND AS ·24 'Related Party Disclosures' , names of the related parties, related party
relationship, transactions and outstandlnc balances where control exists and with whom transactions have taken place durinC
the period are:

Names of related parties and related party relationship
(a) Key manacement personnel and their relatives

Mr. Gauri Shankar Agarwala - Director
Mr. MohanAgarwal· ManagingDirector
Mr. Eiji Wakai - Director
Mr. Satish Kaushik - Chief Financial Officer
Ms. Sonam Garg - Company Secretary
Mr. Peter Francis Amour - Director
Mr. Yuk Mui Theresa Chung - Alternate Director
Ms. Suman Bala - additional Director

(b) Holdinc Companyand Fellow Subsidiaries
(I) HoldinCCompany:·

CenturyMetal RecyclingLimited

(II) FellowSubsidiaries(Subsidiaryof HoldinCCompany):·
CMR Toyotsu Aluminium India Private Limited
CMR·KatariaRecyclingPrivateLimited (w.eJ. 06.08.2020)
CMR Aluminium Private limited

(c) Joint Venture Partner
NikkeiMCAluminium CompanyLimited

(d) Enterprisesowned or slcniflcantiy Influenced by key managementpersonneland their relatives
Sanjivani Non-Ferrous Trading limited
CMR·ChihoRecyclingTechnologiesPrivateLimited
CMRChihoIndustriesIndia PrivateLimited
CMR·KatariaRecyclingPrivateLimited

(e)Additional related parties asper CompaniesAct 2013,with whom transactions have
taken durinCthe year

AdamyaSolutions- ProprietaryConcernof daughterof CEOof parent company



CMRHikketlnc1i1 Private Umlted
Hotel to fInancW swements for the year ended MMch31. 1021
(Amount InRupees L.lkhI, unless otlwrwtse ltatedl

IMI"fheofotIowinC tiltH proviOes the totiIl value dtransactlons Nt have been entered Intowith related parties fOf' the relevant fimmcial period:
{Amount in RI. t..kl!!l_

Pardculars Ho'dlnl Feijow Subsidian.s, joint venture par1,..,.
enterprises unde, same ccntror. othe, ,elated

entities
For the yar ended For tne ye.' ended ser the YflI' ended For the year ended
Milrch 31. 2011 March 31. 1010 M.n::h 31. 2011 March 31. 1010

Trwtct!apsdurI!w tMptriod.
Si""cpodl
Century Metal Recydlrc Umited 16.072.56 7.349.72
CMR· Toyotsu Aluminium India Private umlted 1,428.97 1,642.20
CMR-Chiho RecydircTechn. Pvt. Ltd. 1.64
Nikkei Me Aluminium COm Um..., 1142.20 51.14

Si" pfSpqIttms
Century Metal Recvdinc Umited 40.94 21.32
CMR-otiho Industries India Pvt. Ltd. 1.93
CMR - Tovotsu Aluminium India Private Umited 3.20 0.05

Siltpf Prgpmy Plant.Equtpmtnt
Century Metal RecydI"I Umlted 75.45 48.56
CMR-otiho Industries India Pvt. Ltd. 0.39
CMR· Toyotsu Aluminium India Private Umited 0.51 23.96

Purdamof ,
Century Metal Recydi,. Umlted 25.866.10 14,089.86
Sanjlvani Non Ferrous Tradin, Private Limited 13.938.13 5.92480
CMR-chlho Industries Incia Pvt. Ltd. 38.52
CMR· ToYOtsuAluminium India Prllllte Umlted 468.90

Pwdwt pf st9R Ittmt
Century Metal Recycl1nc Umited 4.64 19.33
CMR-otiho Industries India Pvt. Ltd. 0.13
CMR - Tovotsu Aluminium India Prl\late Umited 0.16

Purchase of Propefty.I'tiJnt' Equipment
CMR - Toyotsu Aluminium India Prlll1lte Umited

9.45CMA<hiho Industries India Pvt. Ltd. 0.79
Century Metal Recyclilll Umlted 0.36 0.59

ReimbyrstflMft! of I!!ptm;p
Century Metill Recyciilll Umited 28.70 7.44
CMR- ToyotSu Aluminium India Private LImited 4.26 17.39N1klceiMC Aluminium Company Limited 0.90 31.47CMR-otlho RI ~ Techn. Pvt. Ltd.

2.27 1.91

I!!teml,,!d
Century Metal Recyclinfl Umited 447.96 180.98

P!'OCYftIDtD' Cammlp!qQ
ltent..y ...... Umited 592.90 336.46

CprppptI GiMAnt"eIy,n on blb,lt of Y'·.
ltent..y...... Umited 537.24

Nikkel MeAk.mlnlum COm Urn...,
1.29

"""m" 4.30 1.33

cent Mota' n Umlted 38.32 31.32

I'nIftpIantI Ctnsuitapcy Fm".m Solutions
0.97 0.39• Net ollnaease I (decrease duri the "... ,.



CMR NIkUlInc:IMI PrtntII limited
Not.s tofIMncW .......... for the year ended March31,1021
(Amount ... !hi,.. LHhI. unIaa otherwise mted)

IAmou", .,', ....... 'I··.....-
~_,"

-~..,... M"'~'~ ZOZO M.~:-.::,." ..."~~,.,.
LImited (inclusive of

7,874.76 3,398.62 .....,i"""""",,~.~,".

3.971.69 2.696.95;

I;:;. ;';;';;;,;;;:;;;.;;U;;;;.:Ltd. 3.62 1.91
0."

31.5<.......
leM'.· , India Private Umltad n3.97 1,001.23

163.83' ......'~T_; .....Ud. . 1.64

INillii ,
1,584.96 1,584.96

s." .. , "".04
II) Noamount has been Written off or written biKk In the period Inrespect of debb due from! to above related parties.
IN)Plant ~nd gtven on lease by the parent company, situated at Survey No. 676 &6n vlliap Vanod Taluka Oanda, District Surendranal~r Gujrilt _382750, hils been
mortpsed 10ShInhan&.nk aplnst the tenn loan obtained by the company.

-,
The Ale and purdlue from related parties are mU on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm's lenifh Iran$~ction. OutSlandlng b.1Ilance~at Ihe vear end are
unsecured. There have been no JUI,antee provided or received for any related party receivables or payablE's. for the year ended March 31. 1011. Ihe Company has nOI
recorded anv ~rrrnent of receivables relating 10 amounts owed by related parties. This assessmeet in undertilkpn ..",eh finannal vear through t'.~m,n,nlr! thl:' fonane,al
position of the rellted PIIrtyand the market in which the related party operates.



CMR Nikkei India Private Umlted
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
(Amount InRupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

32. Employee benefits

DefIned Contdbutlgn Plans- General Descdptlon
PrpyIdent Fund;
The Company makes contribution towards provident fundI pension fund. Under the scheme, the Company is required to contribute a specified
percentage of payroll cost, as specified in the rules of the schemes,to the defined contribution scheme.

Partkulars
For the year ended
March 31, 2021

Forthe year ended March
31,2020

Employers contribution to Provident fund (including
Employee'sPensionScheme1995)·
Total

22.48
22.48

21.32
21.32

• Net off benefit of Rs.0.01 Lakhs(March 31, 2020: Rs1.12Iakhs) received under Pradhan Mantri RojgarProsthan Vojna.

DefIned Bengllt Plans- General pescriptiOD

~
The gratuity plan is governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Under the Act, employees who have completed five years of service are entitled to
specific benefit The level of benefit provided depends on the member's length of service and salary retirement age. The employee is entitled to a benefit
equivalent to 15 dayssalary last drawn for each completed year of service with part thereof in excessof six months. The same is payable on termination
of service or retirement or death. whichever is earlier.

The present value of the obligation under such defined benefit plan is determined based on an actuarial valuation as at the reporting date using the
projected unit credit method, which recogniseseach period of service asgiving rise to additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measureseach
unit separately to build up the final obligation. The obl/gations are measured at the present value of the estimated future cash flows. The discount rate
used for determinina the present value of the obligation under defined benefit plans is based on the market yields on Government bonds asat the date
of actuarial valuation. Actuarial gains and losses(net of tax) are recognised immediately in the Other Comprehensive Income (OCI).

The following tables summarise the components of net benefit expense recognised In the statement of profit or loss and amounts recognised in the
balancesheet for the gratuity plan:

March31 2021 March 31 2020
Particulars Gratuttv Grat~

(Unfunded) (Unfunded)
ChangeIn benefit obIlptlon
Presentvalue of obligation as at the beginning of the
year 17.34

24.30
Current service cost 6.16 7.13
Add: Interest cost 1.64 1.33
Add: Actuarial (gain) 11055 (1.46) (0.05)
less: Benefits paid

(1.36 (1.44)
Present value of obillation as at the end of the period 29.28 24.30

Uability/(Asset) recop1iIed Inthe financi.1 stalements 29.28 24.30

Amount rec:olnlsed In Statement of Profit and Loss:
Partkull" March 31. 2021

6.16
1.64

March 31. 2020
Current service cost
Interest cost on benefit obligation
Amount recoplsed In Statement of Profit and Loss

7.13
1.33

7.81 1.46



CMRNikkei India Private Umlted
Notes to flnanclal statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
(Amount In RupeesLakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Amount rec:opised InOther Comprehensive Income:

Actuarial changes arisins from changes in demographic
assumptions
Actuarial chanses arisins from changes in financial
assumptions
Experience adjustments
Amount of loss recopMsedIn other Comprehensive
Income

March 31. 2021 March 31. 2020

(0.01)

(0.12)
(1.34)

2.89
(2.93)

(1.46) (0.05)

The principal assumptions used In determining p-atuity liability for the Company's plans are shown below:

Ma.<hll: , J: .2.2.-
6.76 6.76

~ rateJ s (%) -
5.S( ~
60 6(

Uoto 30 rn 3% 3%
From 3lto· 2" '"Above, 1% 1%

A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption Is as shown below:
Gratuity Plan

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2021
Assumptions
Discount rate

Olscount rate
0.5% Increase 0.5%Decrease

Future salary
0.5% increase 0.5%Decrease

Impact on defined benefit abrisation (2.26) 2.00 2.02 (2.29)

Gratuity Plan

March 31, 2020
Discount rate

March 31, 2020
Future salary increaseAssumptions

Discount rate 0.5" increase 0.5" Decrease 0.5" increase 0.5" Decrease

Impact on defined benefit obllsation (1.73) 1.91 1.92 (1.75)

The sensitivity analyses above has been determined based on the method that extrapolates the impact on defined benefit obligation as a result of
reasonable changes in key assumptions cccumng at the end of the reporting period.
Sensitivities due to mortality and withdrawals are not material and hence impact of change not calculated. Sensitivities as to rate of inflation, rate of
Increase of pensions in payments, rate of Increase of pensions before retirement & life expectancy are not applicable being a lump sum benefit on
retirement.

The fo1lowf"l payments are expected contributions to the defined benefit pJiln in future years:

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020.s. .s.
Within the next 12months (next annual reporting
period)
Between 1and 2 years
Between 2 and 3 years
Between 3 and 4 years
Between 4 and 5 years
Between 5 and 6 years
Beyond 6 years
Total upected poyments

0.70
0.44
0.49
0.51
0.52
1.55

25.08

0.32
0.28
0.38
0.43
0.47
0.43

21.98
29.28 24.29

The average duration of the defined benefit plan obligation at the end of the reporting period is 21.28 years



CMR Nikkei India Private Umlted
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
(Amount In Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

33. Fair values
Set out below, is a comparison by class of the carrying amounts and fair value of the company's financial instruments, other
than those with carrying amounts that are reasonable approximations of fair values.

Carrying value Fairvalue
As at As at As at As at

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020 March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

47.07 52.14 47.07 52.14
18.74 0.53 18.74 0.53
65.81 52.66 65.81 52.66

Financial assets
A. Amortised Cost:
Security deposits
Non current fixed deposits
Total

Financial liabilities
A. Amortised Cost:
Borrowings 1,787.29 2091.89 1787.29 2,091.89

1,787.29 2,091.89 1,787.29 2,091.89

The management assessed that trade receivables, capital creditors, trade payables and other financial assets and liabilities
(exceptderivativesand liabilities) approximatetheir carryingamounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these
instruments.

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values :_

Derivative financial Instruments -

The fair value of foreign exchange forward contracts is determined using the foreign exchange spot and forward rates at the
balance sheet date.

The derivatives are entered into with the banks I counterparties with investment grade credit ratings.

Borrowlngs:-

The fair values of the Company's interest bearing borrowings are determined by using discounted cash flow (OCFI method using
discount rate that reflects the issuer's borrowing rate as at the end of the reporting period.

Investments, loan to employees, security deposits and Interest accrued on fixed deposits:-
The fair value of investment in other equltv Instruments, loan to employees, security deposit and interest accrued on fixed
deposits approximates the carrying value and hence, the valuation technique and inputs have not been given.
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34. FairValue Hierarchy

All financial instruments for which fair value is recognised or disclosed are categorised within the fair value hierarchy. described as follows, based
on the lowest level input that is insignificant to the fair value measurements asa whole.

Levell: Quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
level 2 : Valuation techniques for which the lowest level inputs that has a significant effect on the fair value measurement are observable, either
directly or indirectly.

level 3 : Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input which has a significant effect on fair value measurement is not based on observable
market data.

The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of the company's assets and liabilities.

Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for assets
As at March31, 2021

Date of valuation Total Quoted prices Significant Significant
In adlve observable unobservable

Fair value measurement using

Financial assets
A. AmortisedCost:
Securitydeposit
Non Current Fixed deposits
Total

markets
(Levell!

inputs
(Level2)

inputs
(Level3)

March31, 2021 47.07 47.07
Ma~h31,2021' -718~.~74~ ~ ~18~.~74~ ~~

65.81 65.81

Financialliabilities
A. AmortisedCost:
Borrowings
Total March31, 2o21 =-1'<::7=87!,:.~29=_---------.:.----~1~,7!_!8!_!7".2"'9:_ ..:....__

1 787.29 1787.29

There have been no transfers between Levell and Level 2 during the year ended March 31, 2021.

Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for assets
As at March 31, 2020

Date of valuation Total Quoted prices Significant Significant
In active observable unobservable

Fair value measurement usins

Financialassets
A,AmortisedCost:
Securitydeposit
Non Current Fixed deposits
Total

markets
(Levell!

inputs
(Level2)

inputs
(LeveI3!

March31, 2020 52.14 52.14
March31, 2020 -=0"'.~53=_-----~~-----~0"'.5~3----------::....

52,66 52.66

Finaneialliabilities
A. AmortisedCost:
Borrowings
Total March31, 2020 -=2~,0=9~1.~8:;9------...:....----__:2~,0~9~1~.8~9:---------::....

2,091,89 2,091.89

There have been no transfers between Levelland Level2 duringthe year ended March31, 2020.
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The Cornpany's principal finandill liabilities axnprlses of tr~e pavabJes, derivatfye liability, financial luarantee, security dep!»its received, ~pital creditors and employee related
payables. The main purpose of these finanaalliabillties is to finance the Company's operations and to provide guarantees to support its operations. The Company's principal financial
assets Include trade and other receivables, and cash and cash equivalent that derive directJy from Its operationJ. The Company also enters into derivative transactions.

The Company Is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's senior management oversees the manasement of these risks. The Company's senior management Is
responsible to ensure that Company's flnancial risk itCIivitieswhich are sovemed by appropriate policies and procedures owl that financial risks are Identified, measured and managed in
accordance with the Company's policies and risk objectives. All derIwtive actMtIes for risk manapment purposes are ~Ilied out by specialist eeems that have the appropriate skills,
experience and supervision. It Is the Company's policy that no tradlnl In derlvlltives for speculative purposes may be undertaken. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for
manac'1'II NCh of these rtsks. which are summarised below._.ok
Market risk Is the risk that the fatr value of future cash flows of a financial wtrument Will fluctuate because of chanle In market price. Market risk comprise of interest rate risk, currency
risk. credit risk and commodity risk.
The sensitivity analysis In the foIIowI"I sectionsrelate to the position as at March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020.
(a) Interest ..... risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of chanBes in market Interest rates. Thert' in no impact on Company's
profit beforetu: due fIoatinc rataI botrowil"llS, as no foreign CUITl!fK.Y borrowing exists at the balance sheet date.

The Company has not disclosed Interest rate risks on any fl~ed rate flnanclaillabliities at fair value through profit and loss. Therefore, a chanle in interest rates at the reportinl date
would neither affect profit Of" loss nor affect equity.

(bl foreI&ncurrency rlsle

The Company Is exposed to forelln excha"le risk arlsinl from forelln currency transactions primarily with respect to USDand CNY. Foreiln exchanBe risk arises from future commercia)
transactions and recosnlsed asset and lialMlitiesdenominated in a currency that is not the Company's functional currency. The Company imports raw materials which exposes it to
foreian currency risk. The Company holds derivative foreign currency forward contracts to mltlRate the risk of chanle in exchanle rate on foreign currency exposure. The following tables
demonstrate the sensitivity to a reasonably possible charllern USDand CNY exchanle rates, with all other variables held constant. The impact on the Company's profit before tax is due
to chances In the fair Vliue of monetary assets and liabilities.

Below Is the Company's exposure to foreiln currency risk changes

Chance In USD • CNY rate Effect on profitbefore,
March31, Z021

USO '5% 22.13
USD -5% (22.13)
eNY '5% (1.29)
eNY -5% 1.29

March 31, 2020
USO '5% (1.361
U50 -5% 1.36
eNY '5% (0.79)
eNY -5% 0.79

(e: I Cornmodfty price risk
The operatirll activities of the Comp,any require the ongoing purchase of aluminium and wap. The purchase price of the aluminium scrap depends on the global metal market. However,
CDmpany Is not exposed to commodity price rist as any cha.". in the price of commodity is subsequently recovered by the COmpany from its customers. thus sateBuardinB itself from
any flu~tion In the price of commodity.

(dler.dit risk

Credit risk Is the risk that counterparty will not meet Its obliptions under a flnancial instrument or customer contract. leading to a financial loss. The Company is e~posed to credit risk
from Its openting activities (primarily trade receivlIIblesl and from Its flnancl"l activities, indudins deposits with banks. Manalement has a credit policy In place and the e..posure to
credit risk is monftored on an oncolna: basis. Credit evaluations are performed on all customers requirins credit over a certain amount.

(IITrIId. recclwlilles

Customer credit risk is manqed as per the Company's estaOIlshed policy, procedures and control relatinl to customer credit risk manaaement. Credit quality of a customer is assessed
based on an extensive credit ratlnt: scorecard and Indivldul credit limits are definedin accordance with this assessment. Outstandins customer receivables are resularly monitored.
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....."""" A.. , Au,
~31.202l March 31, 2020

D-l80days 9,942.90 6,866.22
Above 180 daYs 367.19

(0)Flnand. lnatruments and c.uII depolfb

Credit risk from balances with banks is manqed by the Company's treilsury department in ilCCordancewith the Company's policy. Investments of surplus funds are made only with
approved counterpartles "within credit limits assIined to ud1 counterparty. Counterparty credit limits are reviewed by the Company's Board of DirectOfs on an annual basis. The
limits are set to minimise the ~ of risks lind therefore mltipte financial Joss through countefparty's potential failure to make payments.

The CompMy's muimum exposure to crHtt "*far the components of the Balance Sheet:.._ ....
A.. ,

u. ~.-.;-2M.
Interest acaued but not received '.88
Non CUtTentfixeddeposits 18.74
Security deposits (current I.non aJrrent) 47.07
loan to employees 6.73
Trade receivables 9942.90

Uquldltyrlsll
The Company monitors its risk of a shortall' of funds doing a liquidity planni", exercise.

The Company's obfective Is to milintain a balilnce between continuity of fundi", and fle~ibility through the use of short term borrowing facilities like bank overdraft, cash credit faCilitv
and buyers credit facility. The Company's treasury function reviews the liquidity poSition on an ongoin!! basis, The Company assessee the concentranon of roSk ""'lh respect 10
refinandl'llits debt and conduded it to be low.The Company has access to a sufficient variety of sources offunding and surplus cash and cash eqvrvatenr rl" !hp bas,~ (')1p.pt'(fpd ca,1l
flow. The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company's financial liabilities based on contractual undi~urlted pavment

........ ..... >5yea(5
330.18 2,500.00 881.71 3,711.89

of Ions term borrowlnas (Refer 905.57 905.57

'""""'"'" ...... 1.92 1.92
25.04 167.89 12.91 205.90
29.16 29.16
31.95 37.95

101.14 101.14

As .. .web 31 2OlO_ ....
On ......... lAIssthin 12 months 1-5 Y'I(5 >5 yel(5 To... '8om>wi"" 2,106.73 532.60 1,462.10 4.101.44Current maturities of long term borrowlnp (Refer 629.79 629.19to note 131

Security deposit from customers! others 9.93 9.93Lease lilbillties 18.51 184,63 21,27 224.41Interest acaued but not due on borrowlnp 24.20 24,20Employee related liabilities 41.30 41.30Payable for capital loads 191.01 191,01T.... ,Ie< 4749.66 4749.&6
.73 6197.00 1646.73 21.27 9971.73

EM""n risk tpnClntratlmt
Concentrations arise when a number of counterparties are enppd in similar business activities, or activities In the 5ilme seosraphical region, or have economic features that would
cause their ability to meet contractual obllpUons to be similarly affected by cha",es In economic. political Of other conditions. Concentrations irwiicate the relative sensitivity of the
Company', performance to dMopmem: Iffectinl a particular Indultry. The Company is not exposed to excessive concentrition since tn. customers of the ComPiinVire not enSi!led in
similar business activities. The Companv has a strona customer base and derives Its revenues from many aJstomers belongins to different industries and corresponding trade
receivables are from vMied number of aJStomers.
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36.Segment information

As per Ind AS108 identification of segment is basedon the manner in which the entity's Chief Operating decision makers' ((OOM) review the business
components regularly to make decisions about allocating resources to segment and in assessing its performance.

The Chief Operating DeciSion maker reviews business performance at an overall Company level as one segment "Aluminium and zinc based alloys"

a} Summary of total revenue by Geographical area for the year ended March 31, 2021 Is as follows:

Products and services
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended

March 31 2021 March 31 2020
Revenue from external customers
India 68,241.47 56.624.49
Outside India 6,259.69 639.21
Total 74,501.16 57263.70

b) Summary of non- current assetsby geographical location Isas follows:

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Pr~erty plant and equipment
India 8.500.46 9,045.70
Outside India
Intangible
India 7.31 17.78
Outside India
CapitalWork-In-progress
India 797.24 583.22
Outside India
Other Non current financial assets
India 333.60 324.58
Outside India

Total 9638.61 9971.28

c) Revenue from major customer

Revenue from major customers with percentage of total Revenue are as below:-

Name of The Customer For the year ended March 31 2021 For th~ year ended March 31, 2020
RevenuelRslnlakh!l Revenue (in %) RevenuelRsinlakhs Revenue (in 'i)CenturyMetal R~cll~ limited 16.150.98 22% 7.345.48 13%SuzukiMotors Gujarat Pvt ltd 8,346.77 11% 4,491.74 8%-" ,-,.-

<-:-oJ' 'h_--- __

Ii
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37. Capital Management

The Board's policy maintains a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and
to sustain future development of the business. The Board of Directors monitor the return on capital employed as
well as the level of dividend to shareholders.

For the purpose of the Company's capital management, capital includes issued equity capital general reserves
attributable to the equity holders. The primary objective of the Company's capital management is to maximise the
shareholder's value.

TheCompanymanagesits capital structure and makesadjustments in light of changesin economic conditions and
the requirements of the financial covenants.To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Companymay adjust
the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholdersor issuenew shares.
The Companymonitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. The
Companyincludeswithin net debt, interest bearing loans and borrowings, trade and other payables,less cashand
cashequivalents.

As at AsatParticulars
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Borrowings(Referto note 13) 4,617.47 4,731.22
Tradepayables(Referto note 16 ) 10,393.40 4,943.29
Other financials liabilities (Refer to note 17) 170.77 266.44
Less:cashand cashequivalents (Refer to note 11 (i) ) (23.07) (4.90)

Net debt 15,158.56 9,936.04

Equitysharecapital 8,297.30 8,297.30Other equity 10,352.50 6,535.01

Total Capital 18,649.80 14,832.31

Capitaland net debt 33,8OB.36 24,768.35

Gearingratio 44.84% 40.12%

No changeswere made in the objectives, policies or processesfor managing capital during the year end March
31,2021 and March 31, 2020.

Thereare no indications of impairment of any individual cashgenerating assetsor on cashgenerating units in the
opinion of the management and therefore no test of impairment iscarried out.
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38. Details of dues to mkro and small enterprises as defined under the MSMEDAct, 2006

interest remainingdue and even years,until suchdate
dues as aboveare actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowanceas a ae,au(~""el

underSection23of the MSMEDAct 2006

in terms of Section16of the MSMED
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39. In lJsht of SettIon 135 of the COmpanies Act 2013, the COmpany has spent/provision for Rs. 53.42 Lakhs on account of Corporate
SocIalResponsibility (CSR).

I
party trM5actIons out of (b) above:

~ InN:eom,any as lessee
The Company has entered Into operatlns leases for land with lease terms upto ellht years.
Set out below .... the QnVIna amounts oflease liabilities and the movements durinl the year:

""""'Ion
_.

201. Ma"" • 2020
Openlnl Balance 224.41 240.23
Aa:retIon of Interest 19.94 21.50
Payments 38.45 37.32
hIMc:e_litMd for the year ended 205.90 n4.4.
Current lease liabilities 25.04 18.51
Non current lease liabilities 180.86 205.90

e term fth he effective interest rat for lease liabilities I wnsldered at 9.35%CoA5lderinl the leas o e leases, t •
4L In line wlth the applicable Accountlnl Standards. during the year, pre-operative espenses of Nil (March 31 2020: Rs. 82.97 lakhs)
up to the dfie of capitalization have been capitalised.

42. PrevIous yearfilures has been regrouped/rearranled wherever Is required.

43. World Health OrpniUtion (WHO) declared outbreak of Coronavirus DiSliHe (COVID·19)a global pandemic on March 11. 2020.
Consequent to this. Government of India declared Jockdown on March 23, 2020 and the Company temporarily suspended the
operations In all the units of the COmpany In compliance with the Iockdown instructions i.»ued by the Central and State Governments.
COVID-19 has Impacted the normal business operations of the Company by way of interruption In production, supply chain disruption,
unavailability of personnel, closure / lock down of production facilities etc. during the lock-down period which has been extended till
May 31, 2020. However. production and supply of goods has wmmenced during the month of April 2020 on various dates at all the
manufacturins locations of the Company after obtalnlna permissions from the appropriate sovernment authorities.

The major customers of the Company are OEMs of automobile Industry and the automobile Industry was already reeling under severe
de-crowth. which was followed by a majority of the auto companies announcing a shutdown of their rnanufacturl", units in the
last week of March 2020, due to concerns over ensurln, workplace safety & health of their employees. However, the Company has
made a detailed ~t of Its lIQuidityposition for the next year and the rectlVefabillty and carryi",value of its assets wmprislng
property, plant and equipment. lntanllble assets, right of use assets, Investments, Inventory and trade receivables. Based on current
Indicators of future economic conditions, the Company expects to recover the alrrying amount of these assets. The situation is
chanilna rapidly 1M", rise to inherent uncertainty iN'Oundthe extent and timing of the potential future impact of the COVlD-19which
may be different from that lIStirnated as at the date of approval of these standalone financial statements. The Company will continue
to doseIy monitor any material changes arising of future ewnomic oonditlons and impact on Its business.

44.The Indian Parliament has approved the Code on Social Security 2020 which will impact the contributions I provision by the
Company towards ProvIdent fund and lratulty. The effective date from which the changes are appliQble is yet to be notified and the
rules fOI" quallfyl", the financials Impact are yet to be framed. Based on the initial assessment by the Company, the additional impact
on ProvIdent Fund contributions by the Company is not expected to be material, whereas the likely additional impact on gratu'tv
11iJb111tyby the ComI*lY could be material. The ComJ)<N1ywill complete their evaluation and will give appropriate impact in thl!
finandal statements In the period In which, the code becomes effective and the related rules to determine the financial impact are
OU.......

The acmrnpanyIne notes form an /ntearill part of these financial statements
·~··-v -
"Ii' I ..

For and on beIIaff of the Board of Directors

Place: farkiabad
Date: May 19, 2021 (Company Secretary)

Sa.: ../
(Chl@fFin:~Ci!!r)


